
 
 

 
West Northamptonshire Council 

www.westnorthants.gov.uk  

Disabled People's Forum 
A meeting of the Disabled People's Forum will be held at the  on 

Thursday 6 October 2022 at 2.30 pm 
 

Click here to join the meeting  
 

 
Agenda  

1.  Welcomes, Introductions and Apologies  
 

 
2.  Code of Conduct (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
 
3.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10) 

 
 
4.  Play equipment for disabled children in our parks  

Peter Hackett & Mark James 

 
 
5.  Mental Health  

Nick Wilson 
 

 
6.  Communications with Disability Groups  

Group discussion 

 
 
7.  Community Information Exchange  

 
 
8.  Items for Future Meetings  

 
 
9.  Date of Next Meeting  

IDPWD Virtual Event – from 11am 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MzJkNGZiODQtMGUwMi00YWUxLThhNjktMWRiNjNiZmM2MTQy%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22d96ab1f6-e660-4d50-9ecf-5a0af2121797%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229a1f0bc4-0f7a-4b7f-bb19-fd27fba6339f%22%7d


 
 
 
 
 

 

Information about this Agenda 
 
If you have any queries about this agenda please contact  via the following:  
 
Email:  debbie.maccoll@westnorthants.gov.uk 
 
Or by writing to:  
 
West Northamptonshire Council 
The Guildhall 
St Giles Street 
Northampton 
NN1 1DE 
 
 

Page 2



Code of Conduct for the Forums  

This Code of Conduct sets out the standards that the Forums expect of its members. 
It aims to provide members with an effective ethical framework in which to do business. 
It is not intended to be exhaustive, or to cover every eventuality, but sets out some 
common sense requirements to enable the forums to function smoothly and 
successfully. 

It is the responsibility of the Chair to encourage and enable input from forum members, 
to ensure all voices are heard.  

 

1. Meeting Etiquette  

As an attendee you must comply with the following requirements and any others that 
may be stated from time to time:  

1.1 Contribute positively to discussions concerning the issues of the meeting  

1.2 Be friendly, polite, courteous and respectful at all times to fellow members, and 
others present  

1.3 Not insult, abuse or use offensive language or behaviour  

1.4 Comply with West Northants Councils Equal Opportunities Policy  

1.5 Demonstrate actively that you are interested in and care about the issue that you 
are discussing and want to make a positive difference  

1.6 Show respect for buildings, facilities and equipment being used  

1.7 Speak only through the Chairman of the meeting and not interrupt, heckle, make 
distracting noises or gestures  

1.8 Speak clearly into any microphone provided and comply with any instructions given 
about its use  

 

2. Being Objective  

2.1 Your own experience and views should inform, but not dominate or dictate how 
you participate.  

2.2 If you have a specific issue with regards to a service matter to raise these can be 
discussed with a member of staff at the end of the meeting or you can ask for the 
appropriate officer details. Meetings attended by other residents are not the place to 
raise any issues of this nature.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2.3 Be Fair  

2.4 You must have and show respect for the people you deal with, and take their 
circumstances and personal differences into account. This is about putting equality 
into practice. The key is simply to respect differences fairly, so that you do not exclude 
anyone, or treat anyone inappropriately or unfairly because of their particular 
circumstances. 

 

Breaching the Code of Conduct  

If any person’s behaviour breaches this Code of Conduct, they will be required to leave 
the meeting and vacate the premises where it is being held. They will not be permitted 
to attend future meetings unless they provide satisfactory evidence to West Northants 
Council that they will comply with the Code – e.g. a letter of apology.  

 

If you would like further information or if you would like to discuss the Code of Conduct 
please contact Vicki Rockall, Community Safety and Engagement Manager at 
vicki.rockall@westnorthants.gov.uk or on 01604 837074  

 

 

Page 4



 

  

Disabled People's Forum 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Disabled People's Forum held at Northampton’s Guildhall 
and on Teams on Thursday 4 August 2022 at 2.30 pm. 
 
Present  Martin deRosario (Co-Chair), Cllr Alan Chantler (Co-Chair), Dr 

David Smart, Emma Parry, Paul Thompson, Alex Rex, Graeme 
Wilson, Helene Usherwood, Nick Wilson, Amie Freeman, David 
Reed, Carl Weininger, Rashmi Shah, John Rawlings, Beverley 
Mennell, Debs Burns, Debbie MacColl 
 
  

1. Welcomes, Introductions and Apologies  
 
Everyone was welcomed to the meeting and introductions were made around the 
table and screen. 
 
2. Code of Conduct  
 
3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 
The minutes of the last meeting were agreed as a true record. 
 
4. Mental Health / Action for Happiness  
 
Dr David Smart introduced himself as a retired GP and a Champion of Action 4 
Happiness.  He asked whether there were any particular points they wanted covered. 
A question was asked whether it was true more women developed dementia than 
men.  Dr Smart responded that Dementia was a condition of older age and women 
tend to live longer than men so, statistically, more women tend to develop dementia.  
Do what you can do to keep your cardio vascular system in good health. 
John Rawlings asked about loneliness – with many widows and widowers living alone 
must be quite high for mental health problems.  Dr Smart responded that loneliness 
definitely had an effect on mental health.  One of the 10 keys of happiness was 
relationships, a befriending service was being rolled out across the county.  Carl 
added that in rural communities it was likely to be higher.  Another of the keys was 
giving – this could be volunteering time in the community which would also help 
recognise who the vulnerable residents were. 
 
Beverley stated that the Welfare Reform 2015 and DWP changes saw many people 
having money taken away from them with a perceived link to suicide yet suicide was 
not just an austerity problem.  Dr Smart said that poverty was the biggest issue that 
Public Health needed to address as a national body.  There is little more important 
than housing and feeding oneself and family, that, along with safety forms the base of 
Maslow’s hierarchy of needs.  It can lead to eventual suicide but there were also 
depression and mental health disorders and unless these are seriously addressed 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Disabled People's Forum - 4 August 2022 
 

there would be little impact.  Karl added that he had just come from the Poverty Truth 
Commission meeting and some of the stories were simply horrendous.  
Dr Smart explained that people had been affected by Covid Syndemic – where an 
infectious disorder interacts with non-infectious conditions as shown in a slide on 
page 4 of the slides reproduced below. 

 

 
Another slide (page 5) showed the 2008 Foresight.  How nutrition matters, now early 
trauma impacts massively on mental health.  Those with good mental health were 
50% less likely to catch a cold or have cardiovascular event, 35% reduction in risk of 
death and significantly better overall health.  Exercise in the morning reduces cortisol, 
the main stress hormone, this is evidence based and shows vast benefits especially 
in older age.  Also see pages 11 and 12 slides reproduced below. 
 

 

Page 6



Disabled People's Forum - 4 August 2022 
 

 
 
 
The 10 keys of happiness are evidence based, it is a national movement - Happier 
Kinder Together | Action for Happiness  and there is a local hub at Delapre Abbey.   
The 10 Keys are:- 
Giving – doing things for others 
Relating – connect with people 
Exercising – take care of your body 
Awareness – live life mindfully 
Trying out – keep learning new things 
 
Direction – have goals to look forward to 
Resilience – find ways to bounce back 
Emotions – look for what’s good 
Acceptance – be comfortable with who you are 
Meaning – be part of something bigger 
 
There was engagement at different levels:- 

1. Viewing of the Action 4 Happiness calendars 
2. Expert talks with international experts 
3. Online coaching course 
4. Happiness courses digitally and happy cafes to visit 
5. Volunteer passport and champion training. 

People’s needs were shown on Maslow’s Hierarchy of Needs – housing was 1 of the 
foundation needs and people struggling with abusive relationships, if they could not 
afford their own accommodation were often stuck where they were.  GP’s were not 
the answer as all they could realistically do was to prescribe medication.  The answer 
lay more in the community and social prescribing.  Rashmi added that loneliness 
went deeper than just meeting with someone.  Accessibility and culture differences 
also added complications.  Resources needed to be shared across the county and 
not just go to those who shouted the loudest. 
 

Page 7

https://actionforhappiness.org/
https://actionforhappiness.org/


Disabled People's Forum - 4 August 2022 
 

Nick added that he backed up what Dr Smart was saying and he had lived 
experience of problems related to access to services.  Initially when he had been 
diagnosed with complex PTSD he expected the NHS to fix him with absolutely no 
awareness that he had control himself and so many cultures will not even speak 
about mental health.  This needs to change and more community support groups but 
there isn’t enough funding.  Dr Smart said it was really good to have Nick on board 
especially for men’s mental health as women were 3 times more likely to open up 
and seek help.  Community groups matter and he encouraged the group to campaign 
for personal health budgets where the patient can decide how the money is spent.   
Cllr Chantler stated that he represented a rural area and farmers, who by the nature 
of their job, worked alone for long periods in isolation, and approximately 25% were 
below the poverty line.  Many farmers were lost to suicide, people suffered abuse 
many not making contact for support. 
 
Emma stated she was working with Rachel Travers to set up more happy cafes there 
were also about 20 Good Neighbour Schemes across the county. 
Carl asked about suicide statistics.  Dr Smart replied the data he had was from the 
coroner’s office and men were more likely to use violent means.  People expressed 
inner pain in different ways with self-harm being one of those and it could be the 
inability to get needs met in another way. 
 
Graeme added that physical activity was far more than about getting fit and helped 
improve mental health.  Northants Sport were also based at Delapre Abbey and 
organise a lot of group activities which could be an agenda item for a later meeting.  
Rasmi replied that it was a chicken and egg situation as if many people didn’t get 
financial support with transport they could not get to activities and often initiatives to 
help them were not sustainable. 
 
5. Cyber Protect  
 
Amie Freeman & David from the Cyber Investigation Team 
The Police worked on the 4 ‘P’s 
Prepare – giving advice so hopefully no one was affected. 
Prevent – dealing with young and vulnerable people at risk of using their computer 
skills to attack other systems, working them to deter them and divert their skills. 
Pursue – investigation. 
Protect – work with and support individuals.  A lot of victims suffer from loneliness 
and or poor mental health which is sometimes caused by cyber issues. 
Passwords  

• should be at least 12 characters long – a good way is putting 3 random words 
together. 

• Ideally use different password for each site.  Data breaches are where your password 
is accidently released and criminals will try it on other websites to see if it is the same. 

• Where possible enable 2 factor identification, this will stop the criminal even if they 
have the password. 

Account data breach is where your passwords or other personal details have been 
leaked.  More information can be found using the data breach site: Have I Been 
Pwned: Check if your email has been compromised in a data breach 
Phishing – criminals are after any information they can get. 

Page 8

https://haveibeenpwned.com/
https://haveibeenpwned.com/


Disabled People's Forum - 4 August 2022 
 

Emails - It is not always easy to identify a ‘real’ email, they are getting very good at 
making them look genuine, containing real logos and photos and may even contain 
your name.  Do not click on any links in the email – either go to the organisation’s 
website or ring them.   
Texts - Criminals can put fake text message in amongst a thread – never trust a link 
in a text. 
Phone calls – often pretend to be IT support or a phone company.  They can spoof 
the number and tell you to do things on your computer that gives them control over it, 
Sharing information online – every time you do a quiz or click on a link to complete a 
form you are giving away information, it is safer to check on the organisation’s 
website. 
Courier Fraud – phone and pretend to be an organisation who is undertaking an 
investigation.  They give a good story and tell you to go to your bank withdraw money 
and hand it over to a particular person.  They say you will get the funds back but, of 
course, you would not. 
Romance fraud – online dating is usually completely fine but scammers can befriend 
people, move them to another chat site then start giving sob stories and extracting 
money from the victim. 
David asked for any questions to be sent in via the Forum to be forwarded to him - 
forums.nbc@westnorthants.gov.uk. 
All cybercrime and fraud should be reported to Action Fraud 0300 123 2040 
 
 
6. Update IDPWD Planning  
 
Debbie explained that, following feedback after the last event, there were going to be 
3 social spaces in our Council Offices for people to watch the live screening.  These 
would be in Northampton, Daventry and Towcester – free tea and coffee would be 
available and there would be a ‘host’ in each location.  Potential speakers (to be 
confirmed) were Neil McKenzie for Fraud, Mick Wilson on mental health, Ellie 
Robinson Paralympian swimmer and Born 2 Perform. Kian was confirmed as host. 
So we can have an idea of how many guests to expect it would be appreciated if 
people could book for their relevant location either via Eventbrite or phone 07826 
993847 (leave a message if no answer stating which location and how many people).  
Eventbrite links below. 
 
Northampton - https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/international-day-of-people-with-
disabilities-northampton-tickets-403363409817 
Daventry - https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/copy-of-international-day-of-people-with-
disabilities-daventry-tickets-403365195157 
Towcester - https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/international-day-of-people-with-
disabilities-towcester-tickets-403369688597 
 
 

7. Community Information Exchange  

 
8. Items for Future Meetings  
 
Mental Health – Nick Wilson 
Accessible play equipment for children with disabilities in our parks and play areas. 

Page 9

mailto:forums.nbc@westnorthants.gov.uk
https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/international-day-of-people-with-disabilities-northampton-tickets-403363409817
https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/international-day-of-people-with-disabilities-northampton-tickets-403363409817
https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/copy-of-international-day-of-people-with-disabilities-daventry-tickets-403365195157
https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/copy-of-international-day-of-people-with-disabilities-daventry-tickets-403365195157
https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/international-day-of-people-with-disabilities-towcester-tickets-403369688597
https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/international-day-of-people-with-disabilities-towcester-tickets-403369688597


Disabled People's Forum - 4 August 2022 
 

Discussion around communications with other Disability Groups 
 
 
9. Date of Next Meeting  
 
Mental Health – Nick Wilson 
Accessible play equipment for children with disabilities in our parks and play areas. 
Discussion around communications with other Disability Groups 
 
 
 
 

Page 10


	Agenda
	2 Code of Conduct
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

